
 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
 

Tuesday 4th November 2014 
 
9.30 am 
 
Main Committee Room 
Council Offices 
Brympton Way 
Yeovil 
BA20 2HT 
 

(disabled access is available at this meeting venue)               
 

 
Members listed on the following page are requested to attend the meeting. 
 
The public and press are welcome to attend. 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please ring the 
Agenda Co-ordinator, Becky Sanders, Democratic Services Officer 01935 
462596, website: www.southsomerset.gov.uk 
 

This Agenda was issued on Monday 27 October 2014. 
 
 

Ian Clarke, Assistant Director (Legal & Corporate Services) 

 
 

 
This information is also available on our website  
www.southsomerset.gov.uk

 

Please note earlier  
start time for the 

meeting this month. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/


Scrutiny Committee Membership 

 
The following members are requested to attend the meeting: 
 
Chairman: Sue Steele 
Vice-chairmen: Dave Bulmer and Nigel Mermagen 
 
Pauline Clarke 
Nick Colbert 
Carol Goodall 
Tim Inglefield 
 

Pauline Lock 
Tony Lock 
Paul Maxwell 
Graham Middleton 
 

Sue Osborne 
David Recardo 
Martin Wale 
 

 

Information for the Public 

 

What is Scrutiny? 

 

The Local Government Act 2000 requires all councils in England and Wales to introduce 
new political structures which provide a clear role for the Council, the Executive and non-
executive councillors. 
 
One of the key roles for non-executive councillors is to undertake an overview and scrutiny 
role for the council. In this Council the overview and scrutiny role involves reviewing and 
developing, scrutinising organisations external to the council and holding the executive to 
account  
 
Scrutiny also has an important role to play in organisational performance management. 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is made up of 14 non-executive members and meets monthly to 
consider items where executive decisions need to be reviewed before or after their 
implementation, and to commission reviews of policy or other public interest. 
 

Members of the public are able to: 
 

 attend meetings of the Scrutiny Committee except where, for example, personal or 
confidential matters are being discussed; 

 

 speak at Scrutiny Committee meetings; and 
 

 see agenda reports. 
 
Meetings of the Scrutiny Committee are held monthly on the Tuesday prior to meetings of 
the District Executive at 10.00am in the Council Offices, Brympton Way, Yeovil. 
 
Agendas and minutes of these meetings are published on the Council’s website 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk. 
 
The Council’s Constitution is also on the website and available for inspection in council 
offices. 
 
Further information can be obtained by contacting the agenda co-ordinator named on the 
front page. 
 



 

 

 

South Somerset District Council – Council Plan 

 

Our focuses are: (all equal) 
 

 Jobs – We want a strong economy which has low unemployment and thriving 
businesses 

 Environment – We want an attractive environment to live in with increased recycling and 
lower energy use 

 Homes – We want decent housing for our residents that matches their income 

 Health and Communities – We want communities that are healthy, self-reliant and have 
individuals who are willing to help each other 

 

 
 
 

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District 
Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory 
functions on behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for 
advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset 
District Council - LA100019471 - 2014. 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally blank 



 

 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday 4 November 2014 
 
Agenda 
 

Preliminary Items 
 
 

1.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 5) 

 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 
September 2014. 

2.   Apologies for absence  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (adopted July 2012), which 
includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and 
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal 
interests (and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in relation to 
any matter on the Agenda for this meeting. A DPI is defined in The Relevant Authorities 
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012 No. 1464) and Appendix 3 
of the Council’s Code of Conduct.  A personal interest is defined in paragraph 2.8 of the 
Code and a prejudicial interest is defined in paragraph 2.9. In the interests of complete 
transparency, Members of the County Council, who are not also members of this 
committee, are encouraged to declare any interests they may have in any matters being 
discussed even though they may not be under any obligation to do so under any relevant 
code of conduct. 

4.   Public question time  

 

5.   Issues arising from previous meetings  

 
This is an opportunity for Members to question the progress on issues arising from 
previous meetings.  However, this does not allow for the re-opening of a debate on any 
item not forming part of this agenda. 

6.   Chairman's Announcements  

 
 
Items for Discussion 
 

7.   Presentation From Officers on the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014 (Page 6) 

 

8.   High Street Innovation Funding (Pages 7 - 21) 

 

9.   Verbal update on reports considered by District Executive on 2 October 2014 

(Page 22) 
 

10.   Reports to be considered by District Executive on 6 November 2014 (Page 23) 



 

11.   Verbal update on Task and Finish reviews (Page 24) 

 

12.   Update on matters of interest (Page 25) 

 

13.   Scrutiny Work Programme (Pages 26 - 27) 

 

14.   Date of next meeting (Page 28) 

 
 



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 1 30.09.14 

 

South Somerset District Council 
 
Draft Minutes of a meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held at the Main Committee 
Room, Council Offices, Brympton Way, Yeovil BA20 2HT on Tuesday 30 
September 2014. 
 

(10.00 am - 12.25 pm) 
Present: 
 

Members: Councillor Sue Steele (Chairman) 
 

Dave Bulmer 
Nigel Mermagen 
Pauline Clarke 

Graham Middleton 
David Recardo 
Martin Wale 
 

Also Present: 
 
Tim Carroll 
Ric Pallister 

Sylvia Seal 
 

 

Officers  
 

Donna Parham Assistant Director (Finance & Corporate Services) 
Martin Woods Assistant Director (Economy) 
Emily McGuinness Scrutiny Manager 
Becky Sanders Democratic Services Officer 
 

 

52. Minutes (Agenda Item 1) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 2 September 2014 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

  

53. Apologies for Absence (Agenda Item 2) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Carol Goodall, Tim Inglefield, 
Pauline Lock, Tony Lock and Sue Osborne. 

  

54. Declarations of Interest (Agenda Item 3) 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

  

55. Public Question Time (Agenda Item 4) 
 
There were no members of public at the meeting. 

  

56. Issues Arising from Previous Meetings (Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Scrutiny Manager noted an email had been circulated to members about information 
regarding the Council Tax Reduction Scheme which had been raised as an ‘issue 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 2 30.09.14 

 

arising’ the previous month, and that a briefing note on the matter would be circulated by 
the Assistant Director (Finance and Corporate Services). 

  

57. Chairman's Announcements (Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Chairman noted she had: 

 Recently attended a High Street seminar in London which had been most 
interesting. 

 Attended the Annual Members’ Meeting of Taunton and Somerset Foundation 
Trust on 22 September. 

  

58. Presentation about Health Scrutiny (Agenda Item 7) 
 
Ann Reeder, Regional Advisor on Health Scrutiny for the Centre for Public Scrutiny 
provided a presentation to members regarding the potential for Health Scrutiny. She 
explained the powers of the County Council for Health Scrutiny and the arrangements 
they currently had in place. 

With reference to examples in Dorset, Lancashire and Warwickshire it was explained 
how health Scrutiny could work in a two tier authority. It was noted that much work had 
already been done by SSDC to engage people in health and well-being, hence 
contributing to a better quality of life to residents.  

In response to comments made during discussion the Regional Advisor noted that: 

 SSDC may be able to influence input into the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA). 

 There is no statutory provision for the County to engage with districts regarding 
the JSNA, but there is provision for joint Scrutiny. There is an opportunity for 
SSDC to add value and capacity. 

During discussion comments raised by members, the Deputy Leader and Portfolio 
Holder included: 

 Current arrangements for health Scrutiny were not adequate, and were sadly 
lacking compared to others 

 Difficult situation as we can only look at SSDC but much of the district looks 
further afield. e.g. Musgrove Park Hospital in Taunton.  

 The Better Care Fund, was something Scrutiny should monitor in this area. 

 Need to ascertain what Scrutiny can do in South Somerset, what can be 
achieved, and what joint arrangements could be in place for strategic issues. 

At the conclusion of discussion, the Chairman and members thanked Ann Reeder for her 
informative presentation. Members agreed that a report outlining potential options for 
SSDC Scrutiny involvement in Health Scrutiny would be brought forward to a future 
meeting. 

  

59. Connecting Somerset and Devon Broadband (Agenda Item 8) 
 
The Scrutiny Manager introduced the report as detailed in the agenda and outlined the 
recommendations of the Task and Finish Group. A copy of the Foreword for the report, 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 3 30.09.14 

 

written by the Task and Finish Group Chairman was circulated to members for 
information.  

After a brief discussion members were content to endorse the recommendations of the 
Task and Finish Group to District Executive.   

The Chairman thanked the officers and members involved with the review. 

  

60. Verbal Update on reports considered by District Executive on 4 September 
2014 (Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Chairman noted that the Scrutiny comments had been considered and were 
included in the District Executive minutes that had been circulated. 

  

61. Reports to be considered by District Executive on 2 October 2014 (Agenda 
Item 10) 
 
Members considered the reports outlined in the District Executive agenda for 2 October 
2014. It was agreed that the following comments would be taken forward to District 
Executive for consideration: 

Report from Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust – item 6 

 Members suggested that an annual report is given to Council by the council’s 
representative on Musgrove Park Hospital Board.  

 It was suggested that the newly appointed Chair of Musgrove Park’s Board of 
Governors be invited to attend a future Full Council meeting. 

Draft Asset Management Plan – item 7 

 Members commented on the comment on page 27, “…more than fully stretches 
existing resources etc.” and questioned if the plan was deliverable. 

Highway Officer Report – item 8 

 Members sought clarification on the potential redundancy costs SSDC could be 
exposed to, it is their understanding that we would be liable for the full length of 
service of any post holder – not just their time with SSDC. This could have 
significant implications in terms of redundancy costs. 

 Members asked if there was any evidence of costs regarding appeals for non-
determination of planning applications to compare against the anticipated costs of 
this post. Scrutiny also suggested that if the report recommendations are 
approved that monitoring is done in order to compare the value and cost benefit 
of having the post / advice. 

Loan to Somerset Waste Partnership for Waste Vehicles – item 9 

 Scrutiny queried if the 3.5% interest to be charged by SSDC was of a similar rate 
to if the money was invested elsewhere, or whether there was a risk that SSDC 
would be getting a lower return. 

 Members commented that replacing the vehicles must always have been in the 
long term plan for the company but acknowledged the explanation from the 
Assistant Director (Finance and Corporate Services) that providing the loan was 
the most cost effective way forward for SSDC. 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 4 30.09.14 

 

Policy on Audio / Visual Recording and Photography at Council Meetings – item 10 

 There was some concern that recording of meetings may put members under 
more pressure, but it was acknowledged the public and press were now freely 
able to record meetings. 

Medium Term Financial Strategy and Medium Term Financial Plan – item 11 

 Members commented that recommendation 3 seemed sensible, and thanked the 
Assistant Director (Finance and Corporate Services) for her explanation about 
Non Domestic Rate Volatility. 

District Executive Forward Plan – item 12 

 Scrutiny made no comments 

CONFIDENTIAL - Exclusion of the Public  

In accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), 
the Committee resolved that the press and public be excluded from the following item in 
view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act, i.e. “Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

Investing in Infrastructure – Progressing SSDC Projects (Confidential) – item 15 

 Scrutiny queried what processes were in place to review and reassess projects 
(as detailed in third para on page 64) and were reassured that all funding 
decisions would be referred to District Executive or Full Council as appropriate. 

  

62. Verbal Update on Task and Finish Reviews (Agenda Item 11) 
 
The Chairman and Scrutiny Manager updated members on the progress of current Task 
and Finish reviews: 

Civil Contingencies 

The group had met once since the last update. It was felt there was enough information 
to form the basis of a report, and there would little value in holding a further meeting with 
officers. A final report would be made to the next Scrutiny Committee meeting and 
November’s District Executive meeting. 

Somerset Strategic Housing Framework 

The group had not met and there was no update. 

Budget 

It was explained that a different approach would be taken this year, and 10 members 
would be required for a working group rather than a Task and Finish. It was anticipated 
the group would meet fortnightly with a final report being made to Committee in 
December. 

The Chairman suggested that the Committee awaited the report to the County Scrutiny 
on 14 October regarding the Library Service Review Programme to see if there was 
need to look at the mobile library service in rural areas. 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 5 30.09.14 

 

63. Update on Matters of Interest (Agenda Item 12) 
 
The Scrutiny Manager updated members that the Flooding Steering Group had met the 
previous week. It had been agreed there was a role to play in monitoring the 20 Year 
Flood Action Plan and the group would meet quarterly in the future, with monthly update 
reports submitted to each authority’s Scrutiny Committee by their Steering Group 
representative. 

  

64. Scrutiny Work Programme (Agenda Item 13) 
 
The Scrutiny Manager informed members that the Strategic Director (Operations and 
Customers Focus) and the Leader would attend the next meeting of Scrutiny Committee 
to give an updated on the proposed Somerset Rivers Board. 

  

65. Date of Next Meeting (Agenda Item 14) 
 
Members noted that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee would be held on 
Tuesday 4 November 2014 at 10.00am in the Main Committee Room, Brympton Way, 
Yeovil. 

  
 
 
 
 

 …………………………………….. 

Chairman 

Page 5



Presentation From Officers on the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime 

and Policing Act 2014 

 
 
Officers who have been working to ensure that SSDC is ready to implement recent changes 
in legislation will provide members with a brief presentation giving an overview of the legal 
framework and outlining steps they have taken to prepare for its introduction. Background 
papers have been circulated under separate cover. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



 

 

High Street Innovation Funding 

 

Executive Portfolio Holders: Cllr Peter Gubbins, Area South and Yeovil Vision 
Cllr Angie Singleton, Area West and Market Towns 

Assistant Directors: Kim Close & Helen Rutter, Communities 
Service Managers: Kim Close, Area Development Manager (South) 

Andrew Gillespie, Area Development Manager (West) 
Lead Officers: As above 
Contact Details: Yeovil Vision: 

Kim.close@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462708 
Market Towns Investment Group (MTIG) 
Andrew.gillespie@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01460 260426 

 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To provide members with an update report, as requested on 2 July 2013, about the use of 
the High Street Innovation Funding (HSIF) allocated to the Yeovil Vision and the Market 
Towns Investment Group (MTIG). The report is given in two sections, the first part is for 
Yeovil Vision and the second part for MTIG. 
 
 

Actions Required 
 
That members note and comment on the report.  
 
 
 

YEOVIL VISION 
 
Background 
 
On 2 July 2013, a progress report was presented to the Scrutiny Committee giving details of 
the projects in Yeovil which were allocated funding from the High Street Innovation Fund 
Yeovil Vision allocation of £33,333. 
 
The Committee requested this progress report be made after a further 12 months. 

 
Report 
 
Using the arrangements previously reported, applications for project funding were assessed 
and funding allocated.  
 
The Yeovil Town Team Loyalty Card 
 
It is important to note that the HSFI funding allocation to the Yeovil Town Team for the 
Loyalty Card has been used as a “funding safety net” which has given the group confidence 
to be bold in terms of the range of projects it has undertaken and funded.  The Yeovil Town 
Team is funded entirely from voluntary contributions from local businesses and other 
organisations such as SSDC which gives £3k per annum, Yeovil Town Council and Yeovil 
Without Parish Council. Projects that the Yeovil Town Team has undertaken and funded 
include: 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 The Annual Christmas Light Switch on Event 

 The Annual Food Festival 

 The Annual Fashion Event 

 The Introduction of the Yeovil Town App 

 The development of Social Media to promote the Town Centre  

 The employment of a Marketing Intern to help promote the town centre 

 Regular newsletters for traders in the town centre 

 Provides funding of £2k per annum for Community Safety Initatives 

 Provides £3k funding per annum to improve the Street Scene in Yeovil Town Centre. 
 
There are currently 23 participating retailers using the Yeovil Loyalty Card scheme offering a 
range of deals. 
 
A recent survey of users revealed that over 50% of the participating retailers find that they 
are being regularly asked about Loyalty card offers which shows that awareness of the 
scheme is building. In addition over 30% felt that the scheme had benefited their business. 
The registration of loyalty cards was abandoned because we introduced an app based 
loyalty card for shoppers to download. Traders were also asked to give suggestions to 
improve the scheme and these will be fed into a re-launch over the Christmas period. 
 
Arts Project 
 
The original proposal for an Arts project was achieved by drawing on alternative sources of 
funding, leaving the opportunity for a further arts project within the town centre.  
 
Retail Incubation Project 
 
A significant amount of research has been undertaken to establish the components of a 
successful Retail Incubation Scheme for Yeovil.  We have looked at schemes from around 
the country.  This has resulted in the following proposal being approved by the Yeovil Vision 
Board. 

 
Elements of a package of Retail Business support will include:  

 
 An Information pack on how to set up or relocate a retail business within Yeovil, 

including information of vacant shops, useful contacts etc. 

 financial assistance in the form of grants  

 Assistance with NNDR similar to a scheme run in Area East which covers new 

businesses only, up to 2 years and up to 50% of actual payment due as long as the 

new business doesn’t compete with an existing outlet 

 a mentoring package from experts in retail,   

 marketing expertise and grants, 

 Legal advice on issues like registering a brand, 

 business and financial planning,  

 Retail space could be provided within a town centre or shopping environment on a 
flexible basis and in many cases free of charge for a defined period of time.  This 
could be provided in partnership with local landlords on a “Meanwhile” basis.  

Page 8



 

 

 a scheme to encourage the use of Market trading as a stepping stone to setting up a 
full retail business in Yeovil 

 a Shop Front Improvement Scheme – similar to the scheme run in Area East which 
includes: 

o Eligible costs are shop front improvement to visually enhance town centre or 

village 

o New & existing retail – shops, restaurants and service businesses 

o Up to 50% towards project costs, up to £1,500  

 
Links with organisations such as the ATCM, the Skills Academy for Retail, Federation of 
Small Businesses and Chamber of Commerce would also be valuable. The scheme will be 
supported and promoted by the Yeovil Town Team and the Yeovil Chamber of Trade and it is 
hoped that legal and professional advice will be provided by local businesses on a pro bono 
basis. 
 
Of the £33,333 allocation a total of £25k has been allocated leaving a further £8,333 for 
future allocations.  The remaining £8,333 has is likely to be used to promote a “Love Yeovil” 
campaign featuring the new Love Yeovil and Love Yeovil Markets  Logos.  The project brief 
and costings are currently being developed. 
 

Project Status 
Total 
Project 
Cost 

HSIF %  
Grant 
Allocated  

Yeovil Town 
Loyalty Card 

On going – the scheme has been very 
successful in attracting external 
funding and support in kind.  Offers 
are Free the Yeovil Town Team has 
invested a significant amount into the 
scheme with the publicity being 
provided largely free of charge by the 
Western Gazette.  The £10k Portas 
Town Team award has also been 
used to support this project. 

£40,000 
 

25% £10,000 

Arts Project: 
Culture on Our 
High Street 

Alternative funding was identified to 
run the “Pretty Vacant” Arts project in 
Yeovil.  The funding remains allocated 
for an arts project for Yeovil and the 
Yeovil Vision Board are considering 
options. 

£25,000 At least 
25% 

£5,000 

Retail Incubation 
Project 

Due to be implemented in January 
2015 

£10,000 Estimated 
50% 

£10,000  

 
 
Monitoring and evaluating the Outcomes 
 
The Yeovil Vision Board will continue to monitor the projects to ensure that they meet the 
objectives of the fund and continue to bring benefit to Yeovil Town Centre. 
  

Page 9



 

 

MARKET TOWNS INVESTMENT GROUP (MTIG) 

 

 
Background 
 
On 2 July 2013, a comprehensive report was given to the Scrutiny Committee with details of 
the arrangements put in place to work up and deliver innovative projects to improve local 
high streets, making use of the £66,670 funding allocated. 
 
The Committee requested this progress report be made after a further 12 months. 

 
Report 
 
Using the arrangements previously reported, applications for project funding were assessed 
and funding allocated. In some cases, when it was agreed that original project proposals 
were not deliverable, new proposals were invited. 
 
As a result of the MTIG “Portas” Programme initiative, 9 viable projects were allocated 
varying amounts of funding and of those 1 put forward by the Wincanton “town team” went 
ahead with alternative sources of funding, 7 took up the offer and the schemes are now 
complete and the remaining scheme will be delivered this year. 
 
The MTIG “Portas” programme is funded through a combination of the £66,670 HSIF 
allocation and an existing SSDC capital allocation, should that be needed. As the following 
table shows, grants of £78,424 have been made so far, contributing 44% of project costs. A 
further potential grant of £13,622 will be made on completion of the Ilminster Town Centre 
enhancement project. This means that the HSIF has already been fully utilised. 
 
 

Market 
Town Area 

Details Status 
Total 
Project 
Cost 

MTIG 
% 

Grant paid 

Chard Chard Business 
Start Up - (Empty 
Shop) 

Completed £20,000 78% £14,795.00 

Chard Town Centre Tree 
Replacement 

Completed £11,912 92% £11,912 

Crewkerne Theatre in Shops Completed £8,000 75% £6,000.00 

Ilminster Onward and 
Upward - TC 
enhancements 

Revised scheme 
delayed start, grant 
offer made, scheme 
not yet started 

£13,622 0% 0  

Langport Langport Market 
Development 

Completed £30,000 67% £23,208.00 

Page 10



 

 

Market 
Town Area 

Details Status 
Total 
Project 
Cost 

MTIG 
% 

Grant paid 

Martock Precinct 
Improvement 
Project - 
Community Retail 
Space inc. Market 

Completed £30,000 28% £8,835.33 

Castle 
Cary 

Millbrook Gardens 
Car Park 
Extension 

Completed £65,000 19% £12,500.00 

Somerton Somerton Town 
Centre Car Park 
Improvements 

Completed £10,000 50% £1,173.99 

Wincanton Wincanton Market Other funding found. 
A pilot Sunday market 
was established last 
Autumn, this resumes 
this weekend and will 
run monthly on ‘3rd 
Sunday’ until 
November. (The 
December date has 
yet to be confirmed). 

£15,000 0% £0.00 

 Totals    £203,534 44% £78,424 

 
 
Monitoring and evaluating the Outcomes 
 
MTIG exists to enable people to shape their towns according to their developing community 
plans. These plans are as comprehensive as possible. 
 
All applicants for MTIG funding usually work with someone from their SSDC Area Team and 
agree to complete a monitoring form when their project is complete. 
 
Monitoring and evaluating outputs is relatively straightforward. We are able to list the number 
of market stalls enabled, the number of trees replaced or the number of new parking places 
created. Monitoring and evaluating outcomes, which may be realised over a much longer 
time period, is much more difficult especially as government guidance and reduced SSDC 
resource favour a “light touch” regime. 
 
In each place, the opportunities to improve the High Street’s “marketing mix” are different for 
reasons of geography, history, capacity, interests etc. All this takes place in a dynamic 
environment. 
 
For this reason, the specific contribution each individual scheme is able to make cannot 
always be readily identified, nor the total contributions of all schemes summarised.  
 
The evaluation reports of the Crewkerne based Theatre in Shops Project and the Chard Pop-
Up Shop project attached to this report cover some of these issues. 
 

Page 11



 

 

However, even at this early stage it is possible to note clear signs of success. The Theatre in 
Shops project, the new or improved markets have all created observable new footfall and 
vitality, the enhanced car parks have enabled more visits and demonstrated practical 
investment in the important public realm. The Pop Up Shop in Chard was there for a year, as 
planned, and led to improvements in the appearance of a run down part of town and the 
incubation of new businesses, some of which are now renting formerly empty shops. 
 
Where appropriate, MTIG Portas programme projects were able to attract strong and positive 
local and national media coverage that endorse these initial findings.   
 

       
Monday 12 May 2014 

Can Britain's food markets make a 

comeback? 

Though squeezed by supermarkets and high street homogeny, new initiatives are helping 
revitalise food stalls across the UK   “….In Somerset, the newly revamped Langport market is 
set to launch, on 30 May, after £20,000 worth of investment from the council and the 
Market Town Investment Group – the funding devised by high street campaigner Mary 
Portas.  The market area has been made more accessible and it'll sell local fruit, vegetables, 
jam and cheese. 
 
Peter Roberts, chairman of Langport Area Business Group explains: "We're not selling grotty 
end of range products: we're selling decent local produce. We want this to be a place where 
locals can shop affordably and where you get a specialised, helpful service….. 
 
"For the full article, go to;  

http://www.theguardian.com/lifeandstyle/2014/may/12/can-britain-food-markets-make-
comeback 

 

 

Evaluation Reports 
 

Trading Local – Theatre in Shops Crewkerne 
 
ABCD ( A Better Crewkerne and District) commissioned Bristol based theatre company 
Show of Strength to deliver the Trading Local project in Crewkerne.  “Trading local brings 
together writers, actors, shops, shoppers and volunteers for a glorious celebration of 
independent shops”. The theatre company puts live theatre onto the shop floor by using 
professional actors to perform 5 minute monologues written by local people.   
 
The main aims of the project were to: 

 Increase footfall in to the town centre on performance day 

Page 12

http://www.theguardian.com/lifeandstyle/2014/may/12/can-britain-food-markets-make-comeback
http://www.theguardian.com/lifeandstyle/2014/may/12/can-britain-food-markets-make-comeback


 

 

 Raise awareness of the range of independent shops there are in Crewkerne amongst 
people who do not regularly spend time in the town centre. 

 Connect with the Crewkerne residents who have an interest in the arts. 
 
The latter aim was in response to previous ABCD consultations, which have shown there is a 
strong interest in the arts from a significant number of people in the town.  Those people 
have stated that they want more arts activities and events in the town, and ideally a 
dedicated arts venue for them.  
 
ABCD wanted to use the event to attract and engage with the Crewkerne art lovers and 
establish whether any of those that participated, especially in the workshops, would be 
interested in getting involved with a legacy project, helping to organise future arts activities in 
the town. 
 
The project was split into 2 phases:  

1. Writing workshops 
2. Performance day  

 
Phase 1 – Writing workshops  
There were 6 free theatre writing workshops aimed at anyone living in and around 
Crewkerne.  Shelia Hannon, Show of Strengths Executive Producer, herself an experienced 
theatre writer, carried out the workshops, where participants were taught what constitutes a 
good 5 minute monologue and how to develop a character.  Workshops were delivered over 
a 3 week period in February and March 2014 and were held in a variety of venues around 
the town. 

 Bilbys coffee shop on Thursday 27 February  2-4pm  

 Wadham School Hall on a Thursday 27 February 7-9pm  

 Crewkerne library Tuesday 4th March 10am to 12 noon. 

 George Hotel on a Tuesday 4th March 7 – 9pm 

 Town Hall Council Chamber on a Saturday 15th March 10am to 12 noon  

 George Hotel on Saturday 15th March 2-4pm  
 
Different times of the day and week were chosen to ensure that there was at least one time 
that was convenient for the people who wanted to attend. Workshops were held in a variety 
of venues to spread them around the town giving some local businesses the opportunity to 
benefit from hosting a session.  In addition it was recognised that some people might not feel 
comfortable walking into a pub on their own, or may not want to purchase food or drink so 
public buildings were also included. The majority of the workshops were well attended.  The 
only one that had a low attendance was the Saturday morning one in the town hall.   
 
Altogether 42 different people attended the workshops, which were set up as drop in 
sessions, so people did not have to book and they could attend as many or as few as they 
liked.  Some people attended more than one workshop, where they gained useful 
information, which enabled them to draft a monologue that they brought along to a 
subsequent workshop to gain further advice and feedback.  Some of those people that 
attended more than one workshop also appreciated the social side and this was very 
apparent with the workshops carried out in the café and pub where people stayed on 
afterwards to chat and have further drinks.  
 
Workshop participants had plenty of time to complete their scripts, which had to be submitted 
by 9am on Monday 31st March via email to Shelia Hannon, who made the decision as to 
which scripts were suitable for production.  
 

Page 13



 

 

Phase 2 – Performance day  
12 short plays were chosen to be performed.  On the day each play was performed 4 times, 
giving people plenty of opportunity to watch a play in between shopping, having lunch or 
other activities.   
 
To spread the performances around, where possible some of the plays were performed in 2 
locations.  For example ‘It’s all vintage now’ was performed in both Harts vintage shop and 
the Brainwave charity shop.   
 
One play was scheduled to be performed outside the 2 main supermarkets (Lidl and 
Waitrose), this was done to attract passing customers and encourage them to follow the 
performances and see what other shops the town has to offer.   
 
As the plays were performed in shops and public spaces across the town, with 3 
performances happening simultaneously, it is difficult to say exactly how many people it 
attracted.   However on average there were between 18 – 25 members of the public 
watching a performance at any one time.  The minimum number of people watching was 12, 
but for some performances there were 40 people in the audience.  Altogether there were 48 
performances throughout the day.    
 

Finance  

The cost of commissioning Show of Strength was £9000 and that covered the following: 

1) The Theatre Producers time to:  

 Organise and deliver 6 creative writing workshops  
 Read, edit and revise the scripts that were performed. 
 Visit shops in the town and find suitable venues for performances 
 Audition actors  
 Carry out rehearsals including 1 full day of dress rehearsals, the day 

before performance 
 Organise publicity and promotional materials  
 Promote the event via the internet, e-newsletters and social media 

 
2) 6 actors employed for rehearsals and the performance day. 
3) 1000 printed fliers for the workshops  
4) 2000 printed programmes promoting the event  
 

ABCD used some of their own funds and applied for grants to cover the rest, the £9000 was 
obtained in the following way: 

 £6000 from the High Street Innovation Fund via SSDC Market Town Investment 
Group  

 £1500 from Crewkerne Town Council 
 £1000 from ABCD  
 £500 from Waitrose 

 
In addition ABCD had to provide the venues for the workshops, a dressing room, a sandwich 
lunch for the actors on performance day and stewards to accompany each actor on the day. 
 
The SSDC Neighbourhood Development Officer was able to secure all the venues involved 
in the workshops free of charge. Waitrose donated sandwiches, fruit, crisps and bottled water 
for 18 people (this included volunteer stewards). Crewkerne Heritage Centre & Museum 
donated the use of their meeting room to be used as a dressing room for both the dress 
rehearsal and the performance day. 12 people volunteered to be stewards for half a day 
each and they each received a free sandwich lunch for their help.  

Page 14



 

 

Publicity  
A wide range of communication channels were used throughout the project to try and get the 
message out to as many people as possible.  
 

 Local press - from the early stages of the project the local press was kept informed and 
the Western Gazette and the Crewkerne Weekender ran a number of stories about the 
project from January 2014 through to covering the performance day itself.  The 
performance day generated some very good publicity in both the Crewkerne Weekender 
and the Western Gazette (see attached).  

 E-newsletters and websites were utilised.  Show of Strength has an e newsletter that is 
distributed to 5500 people; four editions of that newsletter were sent out with details of 
the Crewkerne event.  This was useful as that newsletter reaches people based in 
Bristol, Bath and other parts of Somerset and on the day a large group of people from 
Bath came down specifically to watch the shows.  That group spent the day in 
Crewkerne and spent money in shops, pubs and cafes.   

 Social media - Crewkerne Local Information made regular postings on their Facebook 
page.  When they posted up the programme schedule they had 75 people open it in the 
space of an afternoon.  Show of Strength were also posting on Facebook and made 
regular use of Twitter in the days leading up to the event.   

 BBC Somerset Sound had a live interview with one of the Crewkerne writers on the 
morning of the performance day, and regularly mentioned the event as part of their news 
bulletins throughout the morning.  

 Leaflets were used to advertise both the workshops and the performance day.  Leaflets 
for the workshops were distributed via Local Information Centres, some of the shops, 
cafes and pubs and many were also posted through Crewkerne’s doors.  The leaflets for 
the performance day were distributed via Local Information Centres in Chard, Crewkerne 
& Ilminster.  Leaflets were also placed in local shops, cafes and pubs in and around 
Crewkerne including the surrounding villages of Hinton St George, Merriot, South Perrot, 
Thorncombe, Winsham and Mosterton.  Leaflets were distributed at both the Farmers 
market and the weekly Wednesday market in Crewkerne.  Approximately 100 leaflets 
were handed out to people passing by on dress rehearsal day, when people were 
stopping to watch to see what was happening.   

 
Feedback from businesses involved in the day 
The SSDC Neighbourhood Development Officer visited all the businesses involved in the 
project a few days after the event to gain their feedback.  All the retailers were positive and 
said they had enjoyed the performances.  All the retailers involved said their shop had been 
very busy during the performance.  However, many of the audience did just go in and watch 
a play and then left to watch the next one, so did not necessarily buy items there and then.   
 
Typical comments from retailers were: 
 

 ‘Brilliant really enjoyed it’ (Sassies Boutique) 

 ‘I thought the actress was very brave to stand in the shop, with so many people 
standing so close and to give such a good performance’ (Deli Manager). 

 ‘Loved the performance (Butchers) 

 ‘A number of ladies have said they’ll come back to have their haircut’ (Hairdresser) 

 ‘Great for the whole town’ (Charity Shop) 

 ‘We were packed for each show and a number of people stayed behind afterwards to 
ask questions and take away a leaflet’ (Stitch Solutions) 

 
Although all the traders were positive and had no regrets about being involved there were a 
couple of comments that would be helpful if planning to do something similar in the future: 

Page 15



 

 

 
The Hardware store hosted 4 performances; they said on reflection they would have 
preferred 2 because the limited space in their shop meant that during the performance it 
made it difficult for their regular customers to get the items they had come in for.  However, 
because the performances were just 5 minutes long, those customers that had not wanted to 
watch the play had been able to quickly return.     
 
Another retailer felt that performances should be programmed further apart so that the 
audience did not just rush off from one performance to another. They felt it would give people 
more time to stay and shop.  Although it should be noted all the performances were repeated 
several times so that people did not have to rush off to watch another performance, as there 
was plenty of time to see them all and shop, have coffee and generally make a day of it and 
there were people that did that.  
 
Feedback from audience 
On the day there was a sense of excitement around the town and you could see that the 
audiences were enjoying themselves.  There were a real mix of people of all ages, some 
popped in and just watched a couple of shows, others seemed to make a day of it and were 
stopping off for drinks and lunch as well as looking round the shops and watching plays.  
 

 ‘The standard of writing is high and the standard of acting is high, I love the fact that 
the stories all have a connection to the town’ (Crewkerne resident)  

 ‘It has brought people out, the town is buzzing’ (Crewkerne resident)  

 I live in Crewkerne and have never been in here before, but I’m definitely coming 
back (female in Sassie’s boutique).   

 This is the best thing that has ever happened to Crewkerne (Crewkerne resident)  

 I’ve had a great day, thoroughly enjoyed myself.  I’ve watched all the performances 
and stopped off for some lunch (Chard resident). 

 
Since the day ABCD has received feedback from a number of people either by email, or 
verbally telling them how much they enjoyed the day. Below are some of the email 
responses: 
 

I was thrilled to see the impact that Show of Strength's Trading Local initiative had in 
Crewkerne last weekend. It really seemed to capture people's imaginations and draw 
them into the centre of town in a compelling way to shop and socialise. Congratulations to 
everyone involved in helping to make it happen.  In my capacity to support theatre 
development across Somerset, I welcome opportunities where the arts can encourage 
people to share their stories and build their confidence. And as a Crewkerne resident, I 
appreciated seeing great theatre, written by local people, being performed in unexpected 
places around town.  This kind of initiative not only generates fantastic entertainment, it 
also supports the local economy and helps to make our community stronger. (Mark Helyar 
Take Art)  
 
Show of Strength has been a truly inspirational project for Crewkerne, from the initial 
writing workshops back in March to the culmination of performances in the shops last 
Saturday.  For me as a participant it has been amazing. As the writing workshops 
gathered momentum so did the confidence of the writers. I was thrilled that my piece was 
selected and even more excited to see it performed on Saturday.  As a resident it was 
great to feel the buzz in town on Saturday, to see groups of people following performance 
schedules discovering and exploring shops all over town and enjoy live Theatre by 
professional actors was really encouraging.  As a shop assistant it is good to know that 
there was a measurable increase in takings on Saturday.  The publicity that the Theatre 

Page 16



 

 

Company generated covered a far reaching area and that together with coverage by 
Radio Somerset can only have raised the profile of the town.  A very big thank you to 
Crewkerne Town Council, in particular Angie Singleton, to Zoe Harris at South Somerset 
District Council, to ABCD and to Sheila Hannon and the Show of Strength Theatre 
Company for bringing this project to Crewkerne. (Meg Rose – workshop participant)  
 
I am emailing a belated thank you for the plays staged in Crewkerne on Saturday 31 May. 
I went to Crewkerne with four family members and saw five of the plays. I enjoyed all of 
them and thought that they all helped portray the advantages of shopping local. We 
bought meat in Barrett Bros Family Butchers, clothes in Sassie, had coffee in It’s All 
Vintage Now, some items in No5 the Deli and just enjoyed Lavender's fragrance in 
Naturalife. Afraid we did not see them all as we had to return to Ilminster for an 
engagement in the afternoon. (John Goodall, Ilminster resident). 
 
Many, many thanks to one and all of your team for putting together such a worthwhile 
project in Crewkerne today. The hard work and professionalism resulted in a memorable 
day for the town. Your 'cast' were extremely talented and obviously well led by their 
Director & Producer. The various friends I've spoken with today (yes ... both of them!) 
were delighted with the concept and delivery of the project and look forward to some 
positive spin off in the town in the coming weeks and months.  Thank you Sheila for giving 
me the opportunity to contribute (Edwin Weller – Workshop participant).   

 
Key points  
 
Keep retailers informed throughout.  It is important to let all retailers know about the project 
at its inception so they are clear of its aims and how it could affect them.  This makes it 
easier when approaching shops at a later date to ask if they would be willing to take part and 
have their shop used for a performance, if they have been identified as suitable premises.  
Once the venues have been chosen for the plays, again make sure those retailers are kept 
informed of progress and what they can expect on the day. 
 
Use local businesses as venues for workshops.  The workshops held in the café, pub and 
the library had greater attendance than the school and the town hall.  The businesses that 
allowed use of their premises benefited from the additional trade in sales of drinks and food. I 
worked with the business owners to schedule the workshops at times that would normally be 
quiet periods for them, so the workshop would not interfere with their regular customers. The 
George Hotel also benefited from the evening workshop where approximately 50% of the 
attendees chose to stay on after the workshop to chat and have more drinks.   
 
Use local actors.  When ABCD started working with Show of Strength they requested that as 
many of the actors as possible should be resident in Somerset.  Altogether 6 actors 
performed and 3 of those live in Somerset (it had been 4 but one actor had to drop out at the 
last moment and a Bristol based actor stepped in to replace him).  On performance day the 
three Somerset based actors brought their families with them.  During the day those families 
spent money in Crewkerne’s shops as well as buying lunch and coffee.    
 
You can never do enough communicating, despite all the efforts to ensure we had wide 
publicity there were still people that complained that they knew nothing about it.  At least if 
you do communicate widely using a variety of methods, you can demonstrate how 
widespread efforts have been to promote the event.  
 
Did the project meet its aims? 
The project did meet its aims. 
 

Page 17



 

 

Aim 1: To increase footfall in the town centre on the day. 
It is impossible to give exact figures on footfall in the town as there is no benchmark figure for 
comparison.  Also the nature of the event makes it difficult to assess how many people were 
in Crewkerne purely for the event and how many would have visited anyway.  However, it 
can be said that on the day the town was busy and there was a real buzz of excitement 
around.  Crewkerne traditionally becomes very quiet on a Saturday afternoon and many 
shops close around 2pm as a consequence.  On this particular Saturday the afternoon was 
certainly busier than it would usually be and some of the shops that were performance 
venues and would normally shut early, stayed open later.  When I spoke to the retailers after 
the event, those that had hosted performances and had extended their opening hours to 
accommodate the event had no regrets.  All said they were happy that they had stayed open 
and felt that they had benefitted from being involved.  Anecdotal feedback received after the 
day from Phoenix Books (a shop that was not involved in the project) was that there takings 
were higher than usual for a Saturday, which also suggests more people were in town.  
 

Aim 2: to raise awareness of the shops in Crewkerne 

The project was able to promote the shops not only to those people who attended the event, 
but also through media coverage to a much wider audience.  There were people amongst the 
audience who live locally that were made aware of shops they did not know about before.  
Many of the retailers said they had seen new people in their shop and the butcher heard a 
number of people comment that they had not realised Crewkerne had a butchers.  Only time 
will tell whether those people will return to the shops and use them in the future.  However, 
Stitch Solutions, which was a relatively new business when the performance took place, has 
since reported that she has been inundated with work since the play was performed at her 
shop.   
 
People who did not attend the event were informed through the media publicity of the 
performance day. The Crewkerne Weekender gave 2.5 pages of coverage to the event 
including 7 photos of individual shops, with their owner and the actor performing at their 
premises.  The accompanying article gave detail of all the shops involved.  Likewise the 
Western Gazette gave 2 half pages of coverage of the actual event which included photos 
and again provided information on the shops that took part on the day.  
 
BBC Somerset Sound covered the event and included an item on the type of shops involved 
in the project, making listeners across Somerset aware of the good range of quality shops 
that Crewkerne has to offer.   
 
The amount of positive publicity Crewkerne shops received via the media coverage of the 
project would have cost thousands in advertising for the same amount of column inches and 
airtime.  
 
Aim 3: Connect with the Crewkerne residents who have an interest in the arts. 
The project set out to connect with the art loving residents of Crewkerne, with the hope that 
one or more of those people would be enthused enough to want to get involved in future arts 
events.  One of the participants who wrote a piece that was subsequently performed has 
volunteered to get involved in helping to put on future arts events in Crewkerne.  A direct 
consequence of the project is that ABCD have now developed a good working relationship 
with Take Art, which they hope to build upon.  A meeting has already taken place with key 
people including the SSDC Arts officer and Take Art to explore some potential ideas which 
could result in a similar event utilising performance poets taking place in the town in 2015.  
 
Zoë Harris, SSDC Neighbourhood Development Officer (West), August 2014  
 

Page 18



 

 

Chard POP Up Shop Programme August 2013 – August 2014 
 
Summary 

The Pop Up shop was a one year MTIG funded programme managed by Chard Town Team 
in association with Pop Up Britain and BiP Devon. As is often the case with long term 
projects, some aspects exceeded expectations and others components had to be adapted to 
meet changing circumstances. 

Overall the project can be considered a success. 23 serious enquiries resulted in 11 
entrepreneurs taking tenancies over the twelve month period. This resulted in 4 tenants 
moving into 3 empty retail units in Chard, 2 tenants having formed a partnership. One 
entrepreneur has now been trading successfully for a year and is about to move into larger 
premises on the High Street. 

Other tenants chose different business models ranging from retailing at County shows to 
organising craft fairs.  All agreed that the key to the success of the project was the free 
professional business development advice provided by Petra Davis of BiP Devon, which 
gave them the confidence to persevere. 

The Pop Up Programme 

A partnership agreement reached with Pop Up Britain in July 2013, led to Chard Town 
Team’s successful application for MTIG funding for the first Pop Up programme in the South 
West.   As the objective was to provide business incubation rather than a simple discounted 
retail space, BiP Devon became the third partner in the programme. The target opening date 
was agreed for August 2013. 

The location chosen for the shop was in the Stringfellow Gallery Holyrood Street, an area 
identified by the Chard regeneration scheme as in particular need of attention and support. 

Fitting out the shop was dependent on the Chard Town Team Chairman and the 
Neighbourhood Development Officer ( NDO) committing many days of hard work to bring the 
unit to the required standard.  

An advertising campaign began as soon as the project team was finalised. Potential tenants 
were also signposted from Pop Up Britain in London.  Regular advertising for potential 
tenants was to continue for the duration of the programme.  

All applications were assessed by the Pop Up Chard programme panel. The panel consisted 
of Town Team members and the NDO. The principal rule was to avoid unfair commercial 
advantage over existing traders in the town.  

As a partner organisation BiP Devon and Petra Davies proved exceptionally useful and in the 
end key to the success of the programme. Conversely Pop Up Britain became increasingly 
remote as the programme proceeded, although they did occasionally signpost potential 
tenants.  

Enquiries came from a wide variety of backgrounds and age groups, from jewellery to soap 
manufacturers. Of the 23 enquiries that proceeded to completed application forms, 11 moved 
to tenancies and 10 withdrew.  Reasons for not proceeding were principally a change in 
personal circumstances although some believed their business model would not be 
economically viable - and one was under the impression that Chard was a suburb of London. 

Page 19



 

 

How the shop worked 

The shop was managed by the Chairman and other members of the Town Team with 
support from the Neighbourhood Development Officer. They liaised with the tenants to 
provide a daily point of contact for any questions or problems.  The NDO ensured leases 
were signed, housekeeping rules were understood and keys were distributed and returned. 

The shop worked to a staffing timetable agreed between the tenants on a weekly basis, to 
ensure at least one tenant was on site at any one time. No tenants were allowed to delegate 
their turn in the shop to friends or relatives.  This arrangement allowed tenants with other 
commitments such as childcare to continue to trade.  

Press releases were made throughout the year profiling the enterprises that passed through 
the programme. 

What went well? 

The initial target was to transfer one tenant from the Pop Up Shop into an empty retail unit in 
Chard. In the event four tenants have moved into three retail units with other traders 
employing different business models.  Given that the programme was an experiment to test 
market demand, another principal success was continual occupancy throughout the year.  

A positive and supportive working environment created by the original tenants, continued 
long after they had moved on, and certainly gave some subsequent tenants far more 
confidence in their business models then may have otherwise been the case.  

The free business development advice proved to be the essential factor in the success of the 
package. All tenants agreed that the advice gave them the confidence to persevere. 

Throughout the year regular press releases also helped to establish the Town Team as an 
effective organisation for delivering regeneration projects in Chard. 

The selection process proved robust. 2 applications from the original 23 were declined by the 
Pop Up panel as direct competition for existing traders. 

Following business development advice, the final 2 tenants of the Pop Up programme 
decided to form a partnership and then required an affordable retail unit. The NDO facilitated 
a link with Sam Beech the leaseholder of a vacant retail unit formerly trading as Harriman’s in 
Holyrood Street. The tenants were offered a very competitive agreement by Sam, and have 
now moved their joint enterprise into the shop. 

A final success for the programme has been the development of closer links with BiP Devon 
and their intention to continue to offer free business development advice in Chard via the 
Town Team, after the Pop Up programme has drawn to a close. 

What did not go as planned? 

The project took considerably more time and effort than anticipated to launch and manage 
which put an undue strain on the resources of the Chair of the Town Team and the NDO. 

Agreement to replace a dangerous shop-front shutter was only achieved by a last minute 
compromise to divide the replacement shutter cost between landlord and Town Team, which 
was a significant and unforeseen addition to the Pop Up project costs. 

Page 20



 

 

This was a new venture for Pop up Britain. As a partner organisation they proved to be too 
remote to establish a more dynamic partnership. Once they had provided an initial list of 
potential tenants their input rapidly faded.   

In the event, the NDO took principal responsibility for overseeing  the day to day running of 
the programme ranging from tenants queries and problems to organising press releases.  A 
great deal of time and effort was also taken up with applicants who did not proceed to a 
tenancy, but still required support and advice. This included attending the shop at weekends 
to show potential tenants around.  

Business Rates 

A lengthy discussion was held with Revenues and Benefits to determine if the Pop Up Shop 
would be eligible for small business rate relief. Eventually the conclusion was reached that 
100% rate relief would apply, backdated to the start of the project.   

Conclusion 

The project set against its original objectives far exceeded expectations. 11 entrepreneurs 
trialled their ideas in the marketplace and new shops were opened in Holyrood Street and 
the High Street. However the level of staffing needed to run the programme was also far in 
excess of what was projected.  

The Town Team believed this was a worthwhile experiment to ascertain if a Start Up 
business model could work in Chard.  They concluded that whilst there was sufficient 
demand to maintain continuous occupancy for the duration of the programme, the level of 
demand could not justify a continuation of the programme following the year of MTIG 
support.   

The legacy of the programme is positive. They are now new traders in Chard and empty 
retail units have been brought back into use. Chard will also benefit from ongoing free 
business development advice to be provided by BiP Devon via the Chard Town Team. 

Paul Philpott, SSDC Neighbourhood Development Officer (West), September 2014 

 

 

Page 21



Verbal update on reports considered by District Executive on  

2 October 2014 

 
 
The Chairman will update members on the issues raised by Scrutiny members at the District 
Executive meeting held on 2 October 2014. 
 
The draft minutes from the District Executive meeting held on 2 October 2014 have been 
circulated with the District Executive agenda. 
 
 
 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



Reports to be considered by District Executive on 6 November 

2014 

 
Lead Officer: Emily McGuinness, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details: emily.mcguinness@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462566  
 
 
Scrutiny Committee members will receive a copy of the District Executive agenda containing 
the reports to be considered at the meeting on 6 November 2014. 
 
Members are asked to read the reports and bring any concerns/issues from the reports to be 
discussed at the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 4 November 2014. 
 
The Chairman will take forward any views raised by Scrutiny members to the District 
Executive meeting on 6 November 2014.  
 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 10



Verbal update on Task and Finish reviews  

 
 
The Task and Finish Review Chairs or Scrutiny Manager will give a brief verbal update on 
progress made. 
 
 
Current Task & Finish Reviews 
 

 Strategic Housing Framework 

 Budget 
 

Page 24

Agenda Item 11



Update on matters of interest  

 
Lead Officers: Emily McGuinness, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details: emily.mcguinness@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462566  
 
 
Action Required 
 
That members of the Scrutiny Committee note the verbal updates as presented by the 
Scrutiny Manager. 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
This report is submitted for information to update members of the committee on any recent 
information regarding matters of interest to the Scrutiny Committee, and for the Scrutiny 
Manager to verbally update members on any ongoing matters including: 
 

 Flooding Steering Group 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 12



Scrutiny Work Programme 

 

Meeting 
Date 

Agenda Item Issue for 
Main 
Scrutiny 
Cttee 

Budget Background/Description Lead Officer/ Lead 
Member 

2 Dec ‘14 Task and Finish Report – 
Civil Contingencies 

  A report outlining recommendations to be put to 
District Executive about future arrangements for 
the Somerset Civil Contingencies Partnership. 

Emily McGuinness, 
Scrutiny Manager 

2 Dec ‘14 Planning Appeals   Following comments made in the Q1 Performance 
report, members have invited Dave Norris, 
Development Manager to attend their December 
meeting to discuss recent appeal decisions and 
outline what has been learnt from them. 

David Norris, 
Development Manager 

2 Dec ‘14 Somerset Rivers Board   Presentation from Vega Sturgess re; Implications 
of report. 

Vega Sturgess 

2 Dec ‘14 Budget Task and Finish 
report 

  Report presenting the outcomes of this Task and 
Finish Group 

Emily McGuinness, 
Scrutiny Manager 

6 Jan ‘15 Police and Crime Panel 
(PCP) 

  Scrutiny Committee has agreed updates on the 
PCP will be provided twice a year. Cllr Tony Lock 
(SSDC representative on the Police and Crime 
Panel) will provide an update report. 

Cllr Tony Lock 

6 Jan ‘15 Health Scrutiny   Following the presentation from Ann Reader to 
Scrutiny, a report suggesting a new approach to 
Health Scrutiny will be presented to members. 

Emily McGuinness, 
Scrutiny Manager 

TBC Localism – relationship 
between tiers of local 
government (County / 
District / Town and Parish) 
to ensure effective working 

  Initial presentation to full Scrutiny Committee on 
the relevant legislative changes and how SSDC 
are planning to implement them. 

Emily McGuinness, 
Scrutiny Manager 

 
The Somerset Waste Board and Somerset Waste Partnership Forward Plan of key decisions can be viewed at: 
http://www.somerset.gov.uk/policies-and-plans/plans/cabinet-forward-plan/ 

 

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 13

http://www.somerset.gov.uk/policies-and-plans/plans/cabinet-forward-plan/


Task & Finish Reviews 
 

Date Commenced Title Members 

Spring 2014 
District specific document following adoption of the 
Somerset Strategic Housing Framework (Countywide 
Strategy) 

Members involved in the original Task and Finish Group 
for the Somerset Strategic Housing Framework 
(Countywide Strategy) were: Sue Steele, Carol Goodall, 
Derek Yeomans, Graham Middleton. 

October 2014 Budget Task and Finish 
Sue Steele, Carol Goodall, John Dyke, Paul Maxwell, 
Sue Osborne, Derek Yeomans, Mike Best, Tim Inglefield, 
John Calvert, Graham Middleton 

Ad-hoc monitoring Council Tax Benefit Reduction 
Carol Goodall, Sue Steele, Dave Bulmer,  
Sue Osborne Jenny Kenton, David Norris,  
Colin Winder 

On-going 
monitoring 

Somerset Countywide Flooding Summit/ Flooding Steering 
Group 

Dave Bulmer and Sue Steele 

 

P
age 27



Date of next meeting 

 
Members are requested to note that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee will be held 
on Tuesday 2 December 2014 at 10.00am in the Main Committee Room, Brympton Way, 
Yeovil. 
 
 
 
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 14


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Presentation From Officers on the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
	8 High Street Innovation Funding
	9 Verbal update on reports considered by District Executive on 2 October 2014
	10 Reports to be considered by District Executive on 6 November 2014
	11 Verbal update on Task and Finish reviews
	12 Update on matters of interest
	13 Scrutiny Work Programme
	14 Date of next meeting

